

1987 Assembly Bill 567

Date of enactment: April 8, 1988
Date of publication: April 18, 1988

1987 Wisconsin Act 216

AN ACT to repeal 341.26 (2r) (title), 341.26 (6) and 341.267 (3) and (4); to renumber 341.267 (1) (b); to renumber and amend 341.26 (2r), 341.267 (1) (a) (intro.) and 341.267 (1) (c); to amend 341.26 (title), 341.26 (2) (intro.), 341.26 (2m) (title) and (a), 341.267 (1) (a) 1 and 2, 341.267 (2), 341.31 (5) and 341.35 (2) (b); and to create 341.26 (2) (a) and (n), 341.267 (1) (intro.) and 341.267 (1) (a) (intro.) of the statutes, relating to special registration fees for certain vehicles.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. 341.26 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

341.26 (title) Special registration fees for certain vehicles.

SECTION 2. 341.26 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

341.26 (2) (title) FIVE-DOLLAR FEE FOR 5-YEAR REGISTRATION OF CERTAIN VEHICLES. (intro.) A registration under this subsection expires on December 31 every 5th year. A registration fee of ~~\$1~~ **\$5** shall be paid to the division department for the ~~annual~~ registration of each of the following vehicles:

SECTION 3. 341.26 (2) (a) and (n) of the statutes are created to read:

341.26 (2) (a) A driver education vehicle under s. 341.267.

(n) A motor vehicle owned by a nonprofit organization and used exclusively for the purpose of dispensing food and drink at the site of a disaster to emergency workers or to persons affected by the disaster.

SECTION 4. 341.26 (2m) (title) and (a) of the statutes are amended to read:

341.26 (2m) (title) PUBLICLY OWNED VEHICLES. (a) A fee of ~~\$3~~ **\$5** shall be paid to the department for the original issuance of a registration plate for any vehicle owned by this state or by any county or municipality or federally recognized Indian tribe or band in this state and operated exclusively, except for operation under s. 20.916 (7), in the public service by such state, county, municipality, Indian tribe or band. The registration shall be valid while the vehicle is owned and operated by the registrant and the registrant complies with s. 110.20 (6) (intro.) and (b).

SECTION 5. 341.26 (2r) (title) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 6. 341.26 (2r) of the statutes is renumbered 341.26 (2) (em) and amended to read:

341.26 (2) (em) ~~A registration fee of \$5.10 shall be paid to the department for the annual registration of a motor bus owned and operated by a nonstock nonprofit corporation and used exclusively for transporting groups participating in parades or other entertainment, including, without limitation because of enumeration, musical marching groups, drill or baton teams or color guards.~~

SECTION 7. 341.26 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 8. 341.267 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

341.267 (1) (intro.) In this section:

SECTION 9. 341.267 (1) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 341.267 (1) (b) and amended to read:

341.267 (1) (b) ~~A fee of \$3 shall be paid to the department for the annual registration for each of the following motor vehicles when used by "School"~~ means a public or nonpublic school having an approved driver education program as certified by the department of public instruction or the board of vocational, technical and adult education.

SECTION 10. 341.267 (1) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

341.267 (1) (a) (intro.) "Driver education vehicle" means any of the following:

SECTION 11. 341.267 (1) (a) 1 and 2 of the statutes are amended to read:

341.267 (1) (a) 1. Any motor vehicle loaned to ~~the~~ a school by a licensed motor vehicle dealer which is used for the exclusive purpose of behind-the-wheel instruction or for necessary maintenance and storage.

2. Any motor vehicle owned or leased by ~~the~~ a school which is used for behind-the-wheel instruction.

SECTION 12. 341.267 (1) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 341.267 (1m).

SECTION 13. 341.267 (1) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 341.267 (1r) and amended to read:

341.267 (1r) Any person who makes a false statement in an application ~~for registration under this subsection to register a driver education vehicle~~ or who uses a motor driver education vehicle which is registered under ~~this subsection~~ s. 341.26 (2) (a) except as authorized under this ~~subsection~~ section may be required to forfeit not more than \$200.

SECTION 14. 341.267 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

341.267 (2) A driver education vehicle shall be registered as provided in s. 341.26 (2). If a driver education vehicle is replaced, reassignment of the plate to a replacement ~~motor~~ driver education vehicle shall be made by the department on request without payment of an additional fee. The department shall issue plates of a distinctive design upon the registration of a driver education vehicle.

SECTION 15. 341.267 (3) and (4) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 16. 341.31 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

341.31 (5) This section does not apply to ~~persons authorized to register vehicles at a special annual fee of \$1 or to~~ vehicles registered at an annual a fee of \$3 or less \$5 under s. 341.26. Such vehicles, whether registered for a full period or part thereof and whether or not previously registered, shall be registered at the full ~~annual~~ fee. If a person authorized to register a vehicle at a ~~special~~ fee of \$1 \$5 under s. 341.26 transfers the vehicle to a person not so authorized, the fee payable by the transferee shall be computed as for a vehicle not previously registered in this state.

SECTION 17. 341.35 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

341.35 (2) (b) All vehicles registered by the state under ~~this chapter~~ s. 341.26 for an annual a fee of less than \$5.

SECTION 18. **Nonstatutory provisions; 5-year registration period.** Notwithstanding section 341.26 (2) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by this act, the first 5-year registration period under section 341.26 (2) of the statutes, as affected by this act, terminates on December 31, 1993.

SECTION 19. **Program responsibility changes.** In the sections of the statutes listed in Column A, the program responsibilities references shown in Column B are deleted and the program responsibilities references shown in Column C are inserted:

A	B	C
Statute Sections	References Deleted	References Inserted
15.371 (intro.)	341.267 (1)(b)	341.267 (1m)

SECTION 20. **Cross-reference changes.** In the sections of the statutes listed in Column A, the cross-references shown in Column B are changed to the cross-references shown in Column C:

A	B	C
Statute Sections	Old Cross-References	New Cross-References
194.41 (1)	ss. 341.26 (2)(d) and 341.267	s. 341.26 (2)(a) and (d)
341.27 (1)	341.265, 341.266, 341.267 or 341.268	341.265, 341.26 (2), 341.266 or 341.268